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Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone tlnancial statements ol Kuttukaran Green Private

Limited (formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) ("lhe Company") which

comprises the Balance Sheet as at 3l'' March 2024. the Statement ofProfit and Loss, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statemenr ofcash llorrs tbr the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary ot'rnaterial accounting policics and other explanatory inlormation.

ln our opinion and to the' bcst ol'our inlbrnration and according to the explanations given to us, the

albresaid standalone tlnancial statements giv!'lhc intbnnalion required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and lhir view in conlbrmitl witlr the accounting principles generally accepted

in lndia. of the state of atfhirs ol the Companl as al 3 l" March 2024, and LOSS, Changes in Equity

and its cash tlows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143( l0) ofthe Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are funher described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit olthe Financial Statements section ofour report. We

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Elhics issued by the lnstitute of

Chanered Accountants ol lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of

the llnancial statements under (he provisions ol lhe Companies Act" 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

and we have t'ultilled our other r,thical rcsponsihilitie's in accordance with these requirements and the

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audir r'r idcncc' we have obtained is sull'icient and appropriate to

provide a basis tbr our opinion.
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lnformation other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the lnformation other than the financial

statements and auditors report thereon. The said information comprises the information included in

the Directors Report (Other information), but does not include the financial statements and our audit

repon thereon. The Other Informalion is expected to be made available to us after lhe date of this

auditors'repon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified above when it becomes available. and. in doing so. consider whether the other

information is materially inconsistent rvith the llnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audil, otherwise appear to be materially misstated

When we read the other infonnation. if we conclude that there is a material misstatemenl therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for

the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act. 2013 (-the Acl') wilh respect to the preparation of these standalone financial

statements that give a true and thir vieu ot'the' tlnancial position. financial perflormance and cash

flows of the Company in accordance $ith thc' accounting principles generally accepted in lndia,

including the accounting Standards specitied under section lJ3 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance ofadequate accounting rccords in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for

safeguarding of the assets ol the Company and lor preventing and detecling frauds and other

irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that

give a true and fair view and are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

ln preparing the financial slatements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concem and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations. or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible fbr overseeing the company's financial reponing

process.

Our opinion on the financial statemenls does not cover the other information and we will not express

any lorm ofassurance conclusion thereon.



Auditor's Responsibility for the Audil oI the Financial Statcments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis ofthese llnancial slatemenls.

As pan of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise prolessional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentifl and assess the risks ol'matcrial misstarement ofthe financial stalements, whether due to

tiaud or error, design and perlorm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the

override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I43(3)(i) of the Companies

Act. 2013. we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal llnancial controls s_rstcm in place and the operating eflectiveness of such

controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounling

estinrates and related disclosures madc br rnanagement.

Conclude on the approprialeness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting

and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a malerial uncenainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concem. If we conclude thal a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in

our auditor's repon lo the related disclosures in the financial stalements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to conl.inue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation. slructurc- and content olthe financial slatements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner thal achieves lhir prcscntation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among olher matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and signiticant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged rvith governance $ith a statement thal we have complied with

relevant ethical requirernents regarding indcpcndence. and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters thal may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('1he Order"). issued by the

Central Govemment ol lndia in terms ol sub-section ( I I ) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013, we give in the Annexure a slatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe

Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we repon that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the intbrmation and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary lbr thc purposes ofour audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination ofthose books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(iX0

below on reponing under Rule I l(g).

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement ol Protit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Repon are in agreement with the books ofaccounl.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 olthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the

Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31"' March 2024 from being

appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 (2) ol'the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal tinancial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating etTectiveness ol such controls, refer our separate Repon in

Annexure A.

g. No managerial remuneration was paid during the year and hence reporting on compliance with the

provisions ofsection 197 read with schedule V to the act is not applicable.

h. The remarks relating to the maintenance ofaccounts and other matters connected therewith are as

stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reponing under Section 143(3Xb) and paragraph 2(i[Q

below on reponing under Rule I l(g).

With respect to the other matters Io be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

ll of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.2014. in our opinion and to the best ofour
infbrmation and according to the explanations given to us:



a The Company has does not have any pending litigations as on the date olBalance Sheet

C

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material loreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to lhe Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Companl.

d. (i) 'fhe management. as erplaincd in Note No. l5(a) oi the tlnancial statements, has

represented that, to the best ol- it's knowledge and belieC other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts. no t'unds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from

borrowed l'unds or share premiurn or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company

to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"),

with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) The management, as explained in Note No. 35(b) of the financial statements, has

represented, that, to the best ol it's knowledge and beliet other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounls. no lunds have been received by the company from any person(s) or

entity(ies). including tbreign entitics 1"Iunding ParIies"). with the understanding. whether

recorded in writing or otheruise. that lhc company shall. whether, directly or indirectly.

lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultinrate Benellciaries") or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalfolthe Ultimate l]eneticiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures. that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence reporting

under this clause is not applicable.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company, has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has a leature of recording audit trail

(edit log) tbcility except in respect ol'payroll records wherein the software did not have

the audil trail feature enabled throughout the year. The audit trail facility has been

operating in all other accounting soltuare throughout the year for all relevant lransactions

recorded in such software. Further. tbr the periods where audit trail (edit log) lacility was

enabled and operated. rve did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being

tampered u ith.

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Chartered Aacountintt
s*-
-'rt r,LLutut4t tt

PM. VEERAMANI
Partner
M. No.23933, FR. No. OO278SS
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(a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars ofPropeny, Plant and Equipment

including quantitative details and situation

( B) The Companl' has maintained proper records shorving full paniculars of intangible assets.

(b) These Propenies, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical

verification.

(c) The Company does not own any' imrnovable propenies other than improvements to leasehold

buildings.

(d) 1-he company has not revalued its Propertl. Plant and Equipment during the year.

(e) As per the information and explanations furnished lo us, no proceedings have been initialed or

are pending against the company tbr holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) Inventories

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable

inlervals and in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management

is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stock were not material

having regard to the size ofthe opcration ol'the contpany.

(b) The company has been sanctioned /renewed r.vorking capital limits in excess offive crore rupees,

in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis ofsecurity ofcurrent assets during

the year. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations lumished to us, the

quarterly retums or stalements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are

in agreement with the books ofaccount ofthe Company.

i ii ) lnvestments/Loans/Advances and Cuarantees

During the year. Ihe company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or security

or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Pannerships or any other parties other than those given in the normal course of
business. Accordingly. none ofthe subclauses under this heading are applicable.

iv) Comoliance with Sec 185 and Sec 186

In our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, the company had nol

granted any loans to panies to \rhom provisions of Sec | 85 applies and consequently clauses relating

i) Fixed Assets
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to terms and conditions of loan, payment of interest and repayment of principal and status of overdue

are not applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the intbnnation and explanations given to us, lhe company has not

made any investments, guarantees during thc year to which the provisions of Section 185 and | 86 of
the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v) Fixed Deoosits

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not

accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 to 76

of the Companies Act, 201 3 and rules made there under applies.

vi) Cost Records

In our opinion and according Io the information and explanations given to us, the Cenhal

Covemment has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(l) of the

Companies Acl. 201 3. for the company.

(a) 'fhe company was generall_v. regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues towards Provident Fund. Iimployees State Insurance, lncome Tax, Coods &

Service Tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were no

arrears of undisputed slatutory dues as on the last day ol the financial year for a period of more

than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According Io the records of the company. there were no disputed statutory dues outstanding as

on the date of balance sheet.

In our opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to us, there are no

transactions which are not recorded in thc books ol' account which have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the 1'ear in thc ta\ itssessmenls under the lncome Tax Act, 196 I .

ix) Reoavment of Loans

(a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has

nol defaulted in repayment of interest and principal to any lender.

(b) Based on the intbrmation and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;

vii) Statutory Dues

viii) U ndisclosed Income



(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has

utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which

they were obtained.

(e) According to the inlormation and explanations given to us and on an overall examinalion ofthe
financial statements of the company. rve report that the company has not taken any funds from

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies.

x) Application of f-unds raised through public ofl-er / private placement / preferential allotment

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public offer during the year.

(b) The company has raised funds during the year by way of right issue of Equity Shares. In our

opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to us. the Company has utilised

the t'unds raised by way o1'rights issue tbr the purposes for which they were raised.

xi) Frauds

(a) According to the infbrmation and explanations given to us, no fraud, on or by the company, has

been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) As no fraud, on or by the company, has been noticed or reported during the year, reporting under

this clause as per section 143(12)isnotapplicable.

(c) As represenled to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the

company during the year.

ln our opinion and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to us, the company is not a

nidhi company and hence this clause in not applicablc to thc company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the

related parties are in compliance with Section 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no

f'unds raised on short-term basis have been used lor long-term purposes by the company.

xii) Nidhi Companv

xiii) Related Pan.v Transactions



and the details have been disclosed in rhe linancial sralemens as required by the applicable

accounting standards.

Being a wholly owned subsidiary. the company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee as

per section 177 of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 4(2) of Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended

xiv) tntemal Audit

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an inlemal

audit system as per provisions ofthe Companies AcI 2013

(b) Since the company is not required to havc an internal audit system as per provisions of
Companies Act 2013. reponing under this clause on whether the internal audil report was

considered by the statutorl auditor is not applicable.

xv) Non Cash Transactions

As explained to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or

other persons during the year

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934 and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has incurred cash losses in the tlnancial year and in the immediately preceding

fi nancial year amountinB, to Rs.2. I 9 Million and Rs 5.03 M illion respectively.

xviii) Resignation ol Auditor

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is

not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and

management plans explained in detail vide Note No 34 and based on our examination ofthe evidence

supporling the assumptions. nothing has come lo our attention. which causes us to believe that any

material uncertainty exists as on the dale of the audit reporl that company is not capable of meeting

its liabilities existing at the date ol'balance sheer as and whsn they tall due within a period ofone
year irom the balance sheet date. We. horrever. sta(e tlrat this is nol an assurance as to the future

xvi) Resistration with RBI

xix) Coinq Concem
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viability ofthe company. We furlher s(ate that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date ofthe

audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when

they fall due.

xx) Coroorate Social Rcsoonsibil itv

The company was not required to spend any amounl towards CSR and hence reporting under this

clause is not applicable.

xxi) Observations by component auditors

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies and h€nce reporting under this clause

regarding qualifications or adverse remarks b;'the auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Repon)

Order repons ofsubsidiary companies is not applicable.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered A(aountant5

-*\\1e2.{a'v.^.4PM. VEERAMANT --..--Partner
M. llo.23933, fR. No. OO2785S



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENI' AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KUTTUKARAN GREEN PRIVATE

LIMITED (FORMERLY KUTTUKARAN PRE OWNED CARS PRIVATE

LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kuttukaran Green Private

l..imited (Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Orvned Cars Private l.imited) ("the Company") as ol March 31,

2024 in conjunction with our audit ofthe standalone llnancial statements olthe Company fbr the year

ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal l-inancial Controls

The Company's management is responsible tbr establishing and maintaining intemal financial

controls based on "the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of inlernal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants

of lndia". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating ellectively for ensuring the orderly and eflicient

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation ofreliable financial intbrmation, as required under the Companies

Act. 201 3.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reponing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit

ol lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporling (Ihe "Cuidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act.

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal tinancial controls, both applicable to an audit of
lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute ofChartered Accountants of India. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate intemal financial controls

over financial repofiing was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves perfbrming procedures ro ohtain audit cvidence aboul the adequacy ofthe intemal

financial controls system over financial rcponing and their operating elfectiveness. Our audit ol
internal financial controls over financial rcponing included obtaining an understanding of intemal

financial controls over llnancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

Iesling and evaluating the design and operating eft'ectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements. whelher due to fiaud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suftlcient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's intcmal llnancial controls system over financial reponing.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over F'inancial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over linancial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that

l) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions olthe assets ol'the company:

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expendilures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors ol-thc conrpanl; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on lhe

financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal llnancial controls over financial reporting, including

the possibility ofcollusion or improper managemenl override ofcontrols, material misstatements due

to error or tiaud may occur and not be detected. AIso. projections of any evaluation of the intemal

financial controls over tlnancial reponing to I'uture periods are subject to the risk that the intemal

financial control over tlnancial reponinS, ma1 become inadequate because of changes in conditions,

or lhal the degree ofcompliance with the policies or procedLres may deleriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects. an adequate intemal financial controls

system over financial reponing and such intemal financial controls over financial reponing were

operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on "the intemal control over financial reponing

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the

lnstitute ofChanered Accountants ol lndia".

For R.G.N. pRtCE & CO.
Chartered Aaaountants

P.M. VEERAMANI
Partner
M. o. 23933, FR. No. OO278SS



T.UTTUKARAN CREEN PRIVATE LIMITf,D(TORMERLY KUTTUKARAN PRf, OWNED CARS PRIVATE LTMITED). K(rcHI25.

f,STIMATED STATf,MENT OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE ASSESSMENT YEAR 2024-25

YEAR f,NDED 31.0312024 PAN :AAGCK6365F

STATUSCOMPANY

INCOME FROM BUSINESS

Loss as per Statement ofProfit and Loss

Add: Inadmissibles

Disallowance - ROC Fee for incrcasing Authorised Capital

Interest oo Income Tax refund

Depreciation considered separately (excluding depreciation on RoL

Provision for gatuity

lnd AS adjus[nent charged to Profit & Loss

Less: Admissiblcs

Provision for leave encashment wrinen back

Depr€ciation as per IT Rules

Deduction undcr section 35D - Year 3 - ROC Fce

Deduction under section 35D - Year I - ROC Fee

75,000

10,132

t2.24,306

t2,46,531

I t.37,2t',1

(93,10,903)

36,93,746

28,t99

22,48,074

59,090

15,000

(56,17,117)

23,50,363

INCO]\IE I'RO1\I O-I'HER SOURCES

lnterest on lncomc Ta\ relund 10,132

Loss (79.67,4801

Tax Due

Less: TDS/TCS

Refund Due

62rt1

Nil

3,44,276

3,44,276

?



) BrtrL.ccount dct.ils

2) Ind AS rdjustn.nt charg.d lo Profit & Loss

Il ln

Ind AS 109

Dcp€ci.tion m ROU Aslet - No{.22

lntcltst Expcnse on Compursoaily Convcnible Prcfarcncr Sharcs

[rss: lntcrlst lDconrc on r.nt dcpGit (incldcd in Int.itsl on r.nt dcposits - Norc no. I 7)

Id AS 116

Interest Expanse on loasc liability - Note 2l

DeprEciation on ROU Asset - Note 22

[rss: Accn cd rent aqDnsc for the ycar

TOTAI

3) ThG following loss mry bc c.rri.d forrvrrd

Banl Namc

Account Typ€

IFSC

7246809244

Kotak Mahindm B.nk Limit d

Current

KK8K0000592

Busincss t ss

Businass lass
BusirEss lrss
Busincss t ss

B6incss Loss

UnabsorM Depraciatron

Busincss Ls'
Unabsorb€d Depreciation

BusirEss 1r6s

Unabsorbed Dcpreciation

I,32,s7't

2,61,954

1,m,698

15,E5,917

3t,t0,371

Kutlukrr.n Crlctr

Formerly Kuttukaran

41 910

/or and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of

2.73.833

,184

\,17,217

AY 20t8-19

AY 2019-20

AY 202G.2 t

AY 202t-22
AY 2022-23

AY 2022-23

AY 202324
AY 2023-24

Av 2024-25

Ay 2024-25

8 r,96r

44.t43

t, t3,700

41,553

5r,44,363

1.!4,U6

93.44.751

15.55.?32

5?,19,406

22,48,074

,l) Huction under s€ction 35D is clarned as per ITAT decision in 154 ITD l0l

Assassmcnt
Particulars Deduction u,/s l5D

Balance to be claimed

in later years

2022-23 ROC Filing Fo€s 2,95,450 59,090 2.36,360 Year I

2023-24 Balancc Amount 2,t6,360 59.090 |,17,210 Year z

2024-2s Balanc€ Amount 1.77,210 59.090 1.t 8,r 80 Year l

5) Deduction under s€ction 35D is claimed &s per ITAT d€cision in 154 ITD l0l

Asscssment
Particulars Deduction u/s 35D

Balance to be claimed

in later years

2024-25

ROC FilinS Fc€s for

Enhanccmenl of Authoriscd

sharc cspital

75,000 r5,000 60,000

€2t
John

CIN : U50100KL201

rc Limit.d

Owned CaIs imrtcd

PhilipPrul
Phc.: Ko.hi

Drt.:
Direclor

DIN:00016513

Dir€ctor

DIN 0001882

NOTf,S



Kuttu rn Gr.cr PrlYlte Llmlted

(Fomerly Kuttukaran PrE O$ted Cals Private Umilcd)

trlanca .h.€t
(All amounts in INR millions)

PARI'ICTT-AITS 3l Mlrch 2024 3l Mrrch 2023

Noo Curr€nl Aar.t

ProFrty, pla and e+ripne

tu8ht ofusc ( ROID Asi€l

Intangible assel

Other financial assets

D€lerred rax assets

oiher noHurrenl assels

Total noFrurrent ass€as

Curreat a$ctr

Invcntories

Financial assels

Trade Receivabl€

Cash and cash equi\alen6

Incom€ tax asscrs (ner)

Othcr currml assets

Tottl curr.nt atreti

2

24

J

t
26

5

6

7

26

4

16.98

16.08

0.02

12.92

13.82

0,07

6_96

6.',70

0.44

6. t0

4.62

0.92

17.tE

13.50

-18.{5

50.:19

7.ll
I |.26

0.96

2.38

LA
2.22

0.88

Lt9
35.21 5tt..l{t

82..19 96.85

f,qrlt! rnd lirbilities

Equtty

Equity share capiral

Other cquity

Eqrlty rtatbutrble to orvrcB of coaprny

5.t0
(8. r2)

0.10

(0.86)

(3.02) (0.76)

Lirbllltic!
Non{urrent llebllltie.

Financial liabiliries

Borrot+'iogs

l-eale Liabilily

Torrl.oHurrent tirbllld..

CurrGnr I ltld.r
Financial liabiliri.s

Bomwings

rtas€ Labiliry

Tlade Palabl€

- Total outsl..nding duls ofmicro and mall cnETriscs

- Total outstanding du6 ofccdilors oth€r then micro ard s$all ettl€rpris€s

Other cunent liabilili€s

Iotrl curr.ot lhblltd..

t0

24

l3.l
t4.82

0.36

r3.02

12.95

0.t I

18.{9

0.28

6.54

0.05

25.80

26.0t

t0

:.t
l-'|

0.88

3.37

10.87

2.23

32.U

0.06

26.33

lt
l:

36.92 71.5-1

Told cquit! lnd liabililics

Uslerirl Nccounting policies

The accompan}lng noles 2 lo 16 form an inlegrdl pdn ofthe Financial Slalements

As pcr our repon ol e\en date altached

For R.G.N, PRICE & CO.
Chartered Accountants

P.M. VEERAMANI
Partner
M. No. 23933, FR. Io.0027855

/b/ .nd on behalfoflhe Board ofDir€cton of
Kuttulrrm Green PHrrt. Limit d

82.39 9(1.{ts

Formerly Ksukaran

CIN : t-150400Kt201

€2ttJ
Ca]s Pr'vate Limired

Pllcr: Xochi

Dat€: lS. S'. 7o r-9,

John K Paul

Drector

DIN:00016511

Nrveen Phllip

DirEclor

DIN:00018827



nukaran Grcen Private Limited

( rormerty Kuttukaran Pre Owned CaN Private Limit€d)

STATEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAI- RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3I

MARCH 2024

(All amounts in INR millions)

PARTICULARS l\,lote

lncom€

Revmue from operations

Other income

Totil incom€

Expenses

Purchases of Stock in Trade

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Employee b€nefi ts expense

Finance cosls

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Totsl expenses

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax expense

Deferred tax

(1,6s)/profit for the year

Other conrprehensive income

Itens that will not be realdssiled subsequentb to proft ot loss

Remeasurement ofnet defined benefil liability/ (asset)

lncome T6x relating to Item thal will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

(Lossy prolit per sharc (equity share of face value of INR 10 each)

Basic in Rupees

Dilured in Rup€.s

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes 2 io 36 lorm an integral part ofthe Financial Staterncnts

As p€r our repon of evm date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered Acaountantt

%lo{,,.t,,,,t"-.t1
PM. VEERAMANI
Partnea
M, No. 23933, FR. No.0027855

Year ended

3l March 2023

244.59

1.25

158.89

0.34

t4

ls

245.8,t 1s9.23

206.23

8.19

19.16

6.21

5.07

L0.24

r58.38

(14.46)

t2.M

1.15

3.69

7.W

255. r6 170.E0

(9.32) (l l.s7)

2.07 2.91

(1.2s) (8.60)

0.02

0.01

0.14

0.03

(7.26) (E.7r)

22

I

(4r.15)

(41.15)

(870.63)

(870.63)

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of

Kuttukaran Green vate Limited , Kochi- 25

Formoly Kuttukaran

CIN: U50400KL20

O$r'ned Cars Limited

fl"r
DirectorPlace: Kochi

Drte: l{. s. +o t-t1
Director

DIN:00016513 DIN: (XX)l8lt27

Year ended

3l March 202,1

l6

t7

IE

t9

20

2t



Krttrlr Cft.n PrlviL Llmit d
(Fornerly Kuttukrran Prc Olrned Cars Priv.lc Limilcd)

Crlt llow strtamatrt

.{l amounrs in INR milfions)

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO
Cha.tered Acaountrntr

P.M. VEERAMA'{I
Pa.lner
M. No. 23933, FR. No.0027t5S

Place: Kochi

/.)r rnd on behalfoflh€ Board ofDircctors of

KutluLrrr Crr.o Priv.ac Limlt d

€?r 14
Dircclor

Formcrly Kurtukaran Pre Ovned

CIN: UJ0400KL20I

PARTICTIT,ARS 3l Mrrch 2023

Crlh lbx3 frot! opandng aari.lti.a

Profit(l,o6s) bcfoE tir
Finmc. ch,r8.s

DcFEcidion

Misacllr&ouJ Incomc

Provision for bonus

Gain on disposal oflca!.

Provision for doubtfi, &bts

Provision for GBtuity

Provision for lc{w cncashmcDt

Prcvisbn for lcav. .ncrshncd wrilcn b6cl

Op€.rtiDg Prolil b.for. working crpitrl chrnges

(lncr€rs€ydccrcasc in invcntorics

(Incresseyd.crcrs! in Erdc r€&ivables

(Incrcase/dccrcasc io otEr cured asi€ls

IncrEsG (dccr€rs. )in fedc pryrblc

Incr.ase (drcrcas. )in olh.I cunEot liebilitica

Crlh g.ncrri.d froo./ (o!.d) ir opcntio

Tax€s p3i4 nct ofrcfurd rcccived

N.t cllt gdrcr.t d fmtr, (o..d) in opcrrtirg .ctiviti.. (A)

Cllh flows fmo hv.sthg rctiviti(!
I,urEhrs. ofPmpcrty, Plrnl & E4uipment

O1ircrnotr culr€ asscts

Security d€posrl

N.t c$b u!.d h inv6tlnS rctivitiB (B)

C.!h forv! fmD nnimltrg ictiviti.t
Proc€€ds from is!u! ofEquit shfies

Procoeds iom issu. ofcompulsorib Convcniblc Prcfcrcnc, Shares

Change in Borrowiogr ( Non CurrEd & CunEn0

Increas. (dccr.as. )in otlcr fiEDcial lirbtlitics

Loan from dindors

I.3s€ & Rcnl paymcnts duing the ycar

hiercsl P&id

Nct r.!h g.ncr.t d fmln fir.acing.ctivitl6 ( C )

N.t ircrt.!. ir c.!h r[d clth cquiv.Lntr (A+B+C)

Cr'h.nd c.!h .qolv.Lrt! rt thc h.ghtria8 oftlc y.ir

(9.32)

6.27

5-U

( r. r7)

0.?5

0.tI

0.00

1.25

(0 03)

(r r.57)

3.15

3.O
(0.14)

0.5 |

007

009

36.98

(1.49)

(r 84)

(25.50)

(r.15)

(4.10)

142.32j

(3 r2)

(0.49)

l0 2t

t916

7.98

(0.08)

(0.76)

(08t)

7.91

(s.23)

(l2l)
(0 86

(1.57)

(5 13)

(0.04)

(,25

11.291

500

(19.1,1)

2.t2

29.14

(4 54)

(4 4s)

(6..r2)

15.00

17.19

(20.28)

(3 28)

(r.66)

8.13 6.97

9.05 (1.02)

3.2.1

Crlh ! .r!h equivrlcrtsrt thccnd of lhc y.ir I r.26 7.22

(Rcfcr lo notc 7 - Cash rnd Cash E{uivatents)

Thc notes refcred to above form an inteSral parl oflhc standalon€ cash flow slll.m€nt

As per our r.port of.vcn dalc atEchcd

Dstei tS. s.'tot11

Joho K P.ul

Direclor

DIN: 000 I 65 I 3 DIN OOOI

3l Mrrch 2024

2.9E



^ Kuttukarrtr GrecD Privrtc Limited
(Formerly Kuttukaian Pre Owned CaIs Private Limited)

Cssh Flow St{tcment (Continued... )

(AIl amounts in INR in millions)

Reconc iliation of financial liabilities

1 includes current maturities of long leftn borro'/rings

As per our report of even date aftached

Place: Kochi

Date: t.f. S'?",1",

offinanci aclivities in accordance with Ind AS 7

/or and on behalfoftie Board ofDirectors of
Kuttuk r.n Grecn Privlae Limitcd
( Formerly Kuthrkalan Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)

CIN : U5 0400KL201 7PTCM9442

62ttJ
John K Paul

Director

DIN: 00016513

Nrvaen

Directot

DN: 00018827

Non Cash Changes

Particulsrs
As at

I April 2023
Cash Flows Fair Value

Changes
Othels

As et 3l Merch

2024

Non - Current Borrowings* 13.36 t8.08 31.45

Currenl 8.02 (8.02)

Lease Liabilities (refer nore 24) 15.18 t4.44) 7.45 18. l9

Particulars
As at

I Aptil2022
Cash Flows

Non Cash Changes
As st 3l March

2023
Fair Value

Chadges
Others

Non - Current Borrowingst 21.86 (8.49) 13.36

Current Borowings 2.19 5.83 8.02

lrase Liabilities (refer note 24) 17.09 (3.17) t.2s 15.t8

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Chrrte.ed AccOuattnts

4^,tt/!o..,L.,,4v. _

Parlner
M. o. 23933, tn. o. OO2785S



KFrllarar Gr.€o Privrre Limited

(I nerly Kuttukeran Prc Owncd Ca$ Privatc Limited)

Strtcrcrt of Cb.q.r in f,quity
(All alnouds in INR milliois)

A. Eqoity sh.rcqpitrl

B Other

As per our repon of€ven date attachcd

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered A(countants

Prrticshrs No ofEquily shlre3

B.hnce r! rt I April2022

Chanses in c{uity shrE czpital

Brhnce rr rtSl Mrrch 2023

Brhmc t!.t I April2023

Changes in cquity sbrre capital

Brhocc r! rt 3l Mtrct 2(D4

9

10,000 0.10

10,m0 0.10

ro,mo

4,99,500

0.10

5.00

5.09.500 5,t0

Bdrnce .! .l I April2022

Recogtrrrion of Equity Componcnl of Frnancia, InsEulncnt

loss for lhc ycrr

Other comprchcnsivc income, ncr ofux

Total ComprEhcNive lncome

1113

({.88)

(8.60)

(8.60)

{0 0)

(0 0)

(4.88)

1273

(8.60)

(0. t0)

(8.7t)

Brllnce !s rt 3l Mrrch 2023 12.73 (r3.4e)l (0.10) (0.86)

in subsequcnt yc&s.

share for cvery 50 equity sharcs hcld Cons€quent lo cxcrcisc oflh€ option by shareholden, 4,99,950 cquity sbares wcr. issucd by tbe compmy for Rs. l0/- cach on 04/1n023.

for and on behalfof ihe Board ofDirectors of

M. No.23933, rR. ilo. OO27t5S

Pl.c.: Ko.bi

lS.J. ,o 2^/

PrivilG Limit€d

( ForBcrly Kuttulqr.r Pr. Or d

CIN : U50400KL2017TC04'I442

#2rt1
John K P.ul

Dlrector

DtN 00016511

P.M. VEERAMANI
Paaine r

Privr& Linired)

ilip

Dr

DtN 00018827

R€s€rv6 and lurplusEquily

Conpooent

otCompound

Fimmirl
IDltrumenl

C.pitrl
Retrined errnirgs

nel dclired bemfit
li!bility/ (.s!€t),rct

Totrl othcr lquiay .ltributrble to

.quity hold.n of thc Compt,y

(0.10)

(0.02)

(0.86)

l7 25)

(0.02)

(7.26)

t hnc. l!.t I April 202f,

Loss for th. ycar

Olher comprchcnsive income, nel oftax

Total Comprchcnsivc lrcome

12.73

Balrnce rs at Jl Mrrcb 202,1 12.13 (20.71) (0.r;) (8.12)I

9

03.4e)l
o zstl

.l



Kuttrkaran Green Privatc' Limited
.|ormerly Kutn*aran Pre Owned Cars Private l.inrited)
rotcs to the financial statements (continued)

Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Indiarr rupees millions)

1. Company overviov

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited (lbrrnerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited) was

incorporated in 2017 as a Private Limited Company. The Company is carrying on business as authorized

dealers for sales and service of Piaggio electric vehicles.

2, Basis of prepa rntion

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose financial

statements are prepared in accordance with Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015

notified under section 133 of the Conrpanies Act 2013 (the Act), as amended and other relevant

provisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in accordance with

Companies (lndian Accor:nting Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a subsidiary of a listed public

company, this Company is also dccmed to be a public company.

De,tails of Company's material accounting policies are included in Note 3.

6. Functional and prcscntation curreoc)'

Thcse financial stfltements are presentcd in lndian Rupees (lNR), ivhich is also thc Compan)'s lunctional

cunency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions.

C. Basis of mcssurcment

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where ever fair

value is applicable.

D. Use of estimatcs nnd judgcments

In preparing these financial statements, management has madc judgements, estimates and assumptions

that aftbct the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income

and expcnses. Actual results may differ from thesc estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant

effects on the amounts recognized in the finatrcial statements.

I

-s1

A. Statement of compliance

/1/



Kuttukaran Green private Limited
(Formerly Kunukaran pre Owned Cars privare Limited)

otes to the financial statements (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items oI property, plant and equipmenl less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line rnethod, and is generally recognized in the
profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized ovc-r the useful lives of assets.

3. Material accounting policies

3,1 Property, plant and equipnrent

A. Recognition and mcasure ment

B. Subsequent expenditurc

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

C, Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equiprnent are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borowing costs,

less accumulated depreciation and accunrulated impairment losses, if any. cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, road taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost ofa self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

Expenditure on construction, renovation, interior decoration of leased building is capitalized in the year in
which construction or renovation is completed.

Ifsignificant parts ofan item of properfy, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, prant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of flxed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are shown
under Other Non-cument assets. 'Ihe cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each balance
sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of those fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial period to
get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in
the statement ofprofit and loss.

F
(i

(

,./ l5
-ot

?



Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

^(Formerly 
Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Lilniled)

iotes to the financial stalements (continued)

Class of Assets Pleyious Lil'e llevised Lifc
Building 60 60

Plant and Machinery l5 l5

Electrical Equipment's l0

5

l0
Office Equipment's

Computer and Accessories

)
3 )

Motor Car 5 5

Motor Cycle 5 5

Furniture and Fittings l0 10

Tools & Equipment's l5 l5

3.2 Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straightJine basis, commencing
liom the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in amortization in profit or
loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asscts Years

Soliu are 3

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and

adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in

the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3,3 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee b e nefits

Employee benefits payable wholly withiD 1\velve months of recciving employee services are classified as

short-term employee benefits. These benelits ir.rch:de salaries and wages, bonrLs and ex-gratia. Short-term
employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus,
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result ofpast service
provided by the employee and the amount ofobligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plons

A drflncd conFiltution plerr ir a posl.srilFloynrent bclrefit Flnn under whicl'r itr entiry noye fixcd
Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or qonstructive obllgatton to pay ,Unher
amounts. The Company makes specific<l montl'llv contributions towards Covsrnment administered
provident fund s

employee benefi

by employees.

cheme. Obligations lor con ons to defincd contribution plans are rccognizcd as an

t expense in prolit or I ods during which the rclat s arc rendered

The estimated useful lives of items ofpropeny, plant and equipment are as follows:



Kuttukaran Green Private Limited
(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars private Limited)
iotes to the financial statements (continued)

P.repaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payment is available.

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India for
future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC oflndia. The contribution is debited
to gratuity payable.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the a'mount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discourtni tt ut urornt.

The calculation ofdefined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the nei interest expense on
the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying thi discount rate used to measure thi defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of cont'ributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expensei relaied to defined benetit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term employee beneJits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for thiir service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any r€lated assets is deducted. The obligtition is measured on the basis ofan annual independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit melhod. Re-measurement gains or losses are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 

""ono-]" 
benefits will be

required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation ar the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding ofthe discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous whcn the expectcd economic bcnefits to be derived by the Company
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost 01'meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the prcsent value of the lorver of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision
is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

fil
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Kuttukaran Green Privatc Limited

lFormerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Privatc Limited)
;otes to the financial statements (continued)

3.4 Revenue

Revenue on sale of vehicles is recognized when the risk and rewards are transferred to the customer and

is accounted net ofsales tax, fame ll incentive and trade discounts, ifany.

Charges collected towards Annual Maintcnance Contract (AMC) at the time of sale is recognised as

revenue over the period of AMC contract on lime proponion basis.

3.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued on the basis ofcost or net realizable value, whichever is less. Cost for this purpose

is arrived at as follows:

a) Vehicles on Specific Identification Basis

b) Spares and Accessories on FIFO method

c) Accessories and Batteries on FIFO method

d) Goods in transit in respect of vehicles and spares are accounted in the books, upon billing and

dispatch ofthe same by the principal from their factory/ warehouse and are shown under the heads

inventories.

3.6 Financialinstrulrrcnts

3.6.1 Recognilion snd initial measaretnent

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions ofthe instnlmrnt.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially rneasurcd at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly anributable to its acquisition or
issue.

3.6,2 Classiftcotion and subsequent,rreusure,nenl

Financiol assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at either at amortized cost, FVTPL or
fair value in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subs,.-quent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amonized cost if it nreels both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business rnodel whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and

- the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition ofan equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably

elect to present subsequent changes in the invcstment's lhir value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity

)s

\

investment) . This election is made on an investtne vestment basis.

II



Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
otes to the financial statenrents (continued)

All financial assets not classi{ied as measurctl at anrortized cost or FVOCI as describcd above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financ ia I as s el s : B u s i nes s m ocle I tt"^se ss nt e n t

The Company makes an assessment ofthe objective oflhe business model in which a financial asset is
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation ofthose policies
in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing ofsales offinancial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualiS, for de recognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition ofihe assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL

Financiol assets

inleresl
Assessmenl whether <'<tntructual cush ;flows are solel.y payments oJ'principul and

For the purposes oflhis assessment, 'principal' is defined as the thir value ofthe financial assei on initial
recognition. 'lnteresl' is defined as consideration for thc lime value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and lbr other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and a(lministrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms ofthe instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that coLrld change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such

that it would not meet this condilion. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing ofcash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows frorn specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsaquent urcusurernLttt and guin.y qntl l<t,sses

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

These assets are subscquently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest melhod. The amortized cost is reduced b1, impainncnt losses.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment arc

recognized in pr

in profil or loss.

gain or loss on derecognition is recognized

...

assets atFinancial

FVTPL

Financial assets at

amortized cost

f
o

I
\

o
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Equity investments at

FVOCI

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cats Private l-irrrilc'.i)

. {otes to the financial statements (continued)

3,6.3 De recognition

Financial assels

Financiol liabilitics

3.6.4

3.6.5 Derivnive tinsnci itlslrun enls

These asscts are subscqLrently measured at t-air value. Dividends are

recognized as incorre in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents

a recovery ofpart of the cost ofthe investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognizcd in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequcnt mcasurement and goins and bsses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held lbr tracling, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such

on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,

including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the efl'ective interest method. Interest expense and

foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de recognition is

also recognized in profit or loss.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when tlre contractual rights to the cash flows liom the

financial asset expire, or it transfers the righrs to rcceive the contractual cash tlows in a transaction in

which substantially all of the risks and rL.wards of ownership of the financial asset are translerred or in

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

and does not retain control ofthe financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred

assets are not derecognized.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability whcn its contractual obligations are discharged or

cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows

under the-modified terms are subsrantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the

modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability extinguished and the nerv financial liability with modificd terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set offthe amounts and it

intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company holds derivative financial instnnnents to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk

"*poru.".. 
Dlrivatives are initially measured at fhir value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives

are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss'

R
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3.7 Impairment

3.7 .1 Impairment ofrtnonciol instru rcnts

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whethcr financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result liom all poJsible default
events over the expected life ofa financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurcrnent of expected credil losses

Expected credit losses are a probabilitv iveighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses arc measured as

the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the dif'ference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance vr'ith the contract and the cash tlows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation ofallowtnce for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances fbr financial assets rneasured at arnortized cost arc deducled from lhe gross carrying
amount ofthe assets.

Itrite-olf

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off.

3.7,2 Impairment of non-ftnancial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether therc is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amounl is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are groupc.d together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash

inflows that are largely independent ofthe cash inflows ofother assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount ofa CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher ofits value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carlying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. lmpairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

ln rcspcct of aasets for whlch irrpalrment loss Iras lreeu rocognlz€d in prlor pcrlods, thc Company rcvlgws
at each reponing date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has becn a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

set's carrying amount does not exceed theamount. Such a reversal is made only to the e

carrying amount that would havc been dcterrn iation or amortrzalron , if no impairment

t
loss had been lecognized

xt
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Kutrukaran Green Private Limited

{Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private l-ilnited)
otes to the financial statements (continued)

3.8 Earnlngs/loss per slrarc

The basic eamingVloss per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) affer tax for the year

anributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings per share comprises the weighted average

number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number

of equiry shares that could have been issucd on the conversion of all dilutive potential equify shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period unless issued at a

later date. ht computing dilutive eaming per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which

reduces eamings per share or increases loss per share are included.

3.9 Cash-flowstatenrent

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects oftransactions ofa non-cash nature and an1'deferrals or accruals ofpast or future cash receipts or

payments. The cashflows llom regular revenue gcneraling, investing and financing aclivities of the

Company are segregated.

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value

3.11 PreliminaryExpenses

Preliminary Expenses are u'rittcn off in the year of comnlencemerlt olbusiness.

3.12 Leases

Ind AS I l6 has replaced existing leases standard w ith efl'ect fronr 0l .04.2019, Ind AS I 7 Lcases (lnd AS

l7) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measuremenl, prescntation and disclosure' of leases for

both lessees and lessors. lt introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model tbr lessees. A

lessee recognizes present value of the lcase payment (discounted using incremental borrowing rate) as

right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its

obligation to make lease payments and lease rent expensc will be replaced with the amortization of ri8ht-

of use-asset and interest accrued on lcasc liability. The standard also conlains enhanced disclosure

requirements for lessees and will have corsetluential impact on cash flows catcgorics as ucll. -fhe 
new

standard substantially carries forward the lessttr accoLrnting requircments in lnd AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease agreements other

than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease agreements entered into by the

Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall within the meaning of short-term lease as

por thr rtrncrc rnd thur quslificr for exemptien Rr Fcr pnrq 5 to I of Ind AS I I 6, AccorCingly. thia

4,

t

standard is not applied for short term |eases
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Kuttukaran Creen Private I-imited
(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Ouned Cars Priratc [.irrrircdt
-otes 

to the financial statements (continued)

3.13 Recognition of Interest Income or Intcrest Expcnsc

Interest income other than received from banJ<s is recognized on effective intcrest rate basis and Interesl
Income from banks are based on statement receivcd i'rom banks.
The 'effective interest rate' is the rate tllat exa.-tly discounts estimatetl lirture cash payments or receipts
through the expected life ofthe financial instrument to the gross carrying amount ofthe financial asset or
the amortized cost ofthe financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expensc, thc efl'ective interest rale is applied to the gross carrying
amount ofthe asset (when the asset is not credirirnpailed) or to the amortized cost ofthe liability.

3.14 lncome Tax

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect ol temporary diflerences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect ol'carried for*'ard tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the exlent that iI has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing othcr evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be

available against which such defened tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or
recognized, are reviewed at each repoilirlg date antl are recognized,/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectivel\, that the relatcd tax bcnefir will be realized.

Defened tax is measured at the tax rates thal are expectcd to apply to the period wh!.n the assct is

realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date. The measurement of deiLrred tax rcflects the tax consequences that would follow frorn

the manner in which the Company expects, at thc reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
ofits assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ot'fset il'there is a legatly enforceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same

taxablg entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis or theirtaxassetsandliabiliticswill bc realizetl simultaneously.

Expenses/income less than Rs. 5,00,001t, il anv, are t)o1 treated as prior period items as they are not

material considering the scale of operiltions ol'the contpen),. Further, expense / income relating to

earlier years which crystallised during the year arc not treated as prior period items.

I

3.15. Prior Period Itcms



Ku..dl-.rlr Gr.{r Prlvrt! Ltmllcd
(Fomcrly Kuttuh6n Prc O\vtrd ClE Priv.tc Limitcd)

Not6 to rb. Iltrrclal 3(!r.De.ll {condnu.d)

lAll.mou.ts io INR in miuiorc)

Prop.rtJ, Plmt arld Equlpmeni

gI!!!-gcg

B.l.[ ei I April 2022

Dis?osrls

Brlrnc. .t ! I M.rct 2023

BuildlnEi (#)
l:lectricd

Equiphenl llquipmeDt

Oflicr
gquipmenr EquipmeDl

'Ioral

0.01

0.0t

1.59

0J8
039

0.59

0.09

0.18

t.?t
5.ll

6.l1

3.I
0.05

0.28

0.t I
0 t7

9.lt.t 0.29 2.t7 0,21t 11.92

B.lfice .t I April 2023

Brhce .t 3l!t Mrrc! 202{

9.Erl

l16
0.:-1

057

0.u
001

2.t1

ll0
0.9t

a.l7

0.29 0.21t 11.92

5J.l0.02

13.00 0.I9 0.05 3.'l? t.l5 0--10 t9.t5

AccumtrlNtd Depro.iari'r

Bimc.d I April1022
Dept.iltion for th. yd
Dispos!ls

BrLnce.l3l Mrrct 2023

0.01

0.t4

0.0t

00l
0.0I

00t
0.0t

002

0.!0
0.16

0.05

0.:0
0.02

0.02

0.22

0.7E

0.t? 0-01 0.02 0.02 0.{6 0.25

B.lrnce rt I Aprll 2023

Dep.!.iation fo. ttE pcriod

Disposah

B.lroc. d J ltt M..ch 202a

0.1?

0.2t

0.0J

005

0.02

001

0,0,

0 0t

0/6
0J0

025

0.15

0.03

0.04

0.99

t.lE

0-18 0.0E 0.05 0,0-l 0.6{ 0.07 2.11

Carrinp amounrs tner)

t2.67 0.1i2 0.2,1 0.0:l 2.5r 0.55 0.2.1 !6,9E

0.40 [.27 0.02 1.70 o.77 0.2{ 12.92

tnis on lcrse hold bulld

.t.t ll \la.h 202.1 ,$ rl ll ]l.rch 2023

Nct Block

Bu,ldins 1t.00 t2.62 984

i,

+



Kr (t u li{r'a C;r'een I'rivalc Litnited

([:ornrerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(AIl arnounts in INR in millions)

3 Intangible assets

Particula rs Softl'are
Reconciliation of carrying amount
(i ross Illock

Balance at I April 2022

Additions

Disposals

Balance at Jl March 2023

0.14

0.00

0.14

0.00

0.1-l 0.1{

llalancc at I April 2023

Add itions

Disposals

Balance as at 3l March 2024

0.1{ 0.1{

0. 1{ 0.l{

,\cculn u hlc(l a rnortis:rtion

llal:rnce at I April 2022

Amortisation for the year

Balance at Jl March 2023

0.02

0.05

0.02

0.05

0.07

Balancc at I April 202J

r\rnoll isat iorr for the period

llalancc as at 3l March 202{

0.07

0.05

0.07

0.05

0.12 u.t2

Ca ln amounts (net)

As st 3lst Mar 202{ 0.02 0.02

As at 3lsl Mar 2023 0.07 0.07

Total

0.07
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Kum - rrn Green Private Limited
(Fom!".|y Kutokaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)

Notes to the [iortrcisl strtements (cotrtinued)

(Allamounts in INR millions)

l0 Borrowings

Non{urretrt

Securcd loorrs

Compulsorily Convertible Pr€ference Shares

Term loan from financial institutions

UDiecured lolna
Inter-Corporate lran

Curretlt

Securcd

Cash credil and overdraft facilities liom baiks

Short term lolo from fin.ncid iEstitution

Current maturities of tnng Tetm Debt

Recotrcilirdon of Compulsorily Cotrvertible Preference Shrres

Face Value ofCompulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Equity Componenl of Financial lnstrumenl

Accumulated Finance Cost on liability component

As at

3l Msrch 2024

As rt
3l March 2023

2.'t4

0.83

2.50

r0.52

29.74

33.31 1t.02

0.81J

8.02

2.85

0.88 t0.87

Total Borrowirgs 3,t.19 2l.lr9

Srcured Ba[k loms

Cash Credit facility fiom Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is securcd by First and exclusive h)?olhecation charge on all existng and firture currcnt.sscts of thc

Bonower cxccpt stock funded by IF banker and Extension of equitable rnortgage over prop€rties situatcd at Edappally own€d by M/S Ifuttukaran Trading

VenturEs and at Thiruvananthapuram o\rnod by tWS Kuttukaran Homes LLP

Overdraft facilities from Banks are secured by'Exclusive fi6t charge by way of hlAothecation over all present and future stock 8rld receivables financcd

0rough thc e-DFS limit with the State Bank of India including advance rcmittances made to lws Piaggio Vehicl€s Private Limited out of the facility 8nd

equitable rnortgage over property situatcd at Calicut in lhc name of M/S Kuttukara. Trading Veotures

Term loan from Kotak MahiodE Bar* is seculd by Extension of equitable mortgage over prcperties situaled al Edappally owned by Ir/S Kuttukaran Trading

Ventu.es and at Thiruvananthapurarn owned by M/S Kuttukaran Homes LLP. This loan was closed during the year

The Vehicle loans arc secured by (a) hypothecation of the Vehicle financed ; alld (b) personal guaraltec by dircctor of the con$atry. The loan is repayable in

24 instalme'nts. Out of 8 loans availed 6 loans have b€cn closed during the year

The Eeferencc sharEs are cmpulsorily convenible into such no : of Equiry Shar€s of the company at arry timc H\reen tllI€e months and nioet€a ycars ftom

fte date of issue at the companys option bas€d on the valuation of equity shar€s at the time of convc6ion. Mamgernent has estimated time of clnvcrsion at

the crd of thc nineteenth year. Accordiogly, the fair value of borrowings has been estimated by discountiog thc Facc Value using a discount mte of rctum for

similar period and ttre rernining portion is allocated as cquity componenl and disclosed in statemeot of changes in equity.

Unsecured loans ftom Holditrg corpa[y Popular Vehicles & Services Limiled carrying inter€st rate of 8.600lo and 9.7170 arerepayablewithin6andiy€ats

rcspectively

ii)

iii)

i)

iv)

v)

vi)

15.00

(12.73\

0.24

2.74 2.51

Interest Expense for lhe year recognised in Statemcnt ofProfil or lnss 0.21 0.24

I5.00

(12.73)

0.41



Kuttuksrrn C rcen Private Limitcd
(Fomrcrlr Kunukaran Pre Owned (ars l)rilate l-inrilcd)

Notes to lhc 1inencirl stetcments (.ontinued)
(All a x)unls in INR millions)

I I Pror isions

\on ('urrent
('ompensated absences

l'ro!ision fbr Gratuit!

Currcnl

Compensated absences

l2 Currcnt

Slatulor) dues payables

( ontracr liabililies

Other l-iabilities

13 Tr.dc Psyabl.

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

others- l rade Payable

.ll \larch 202J 3l \lerch 202J

0. t0

016

(J,I I

0.J6 0.t r

0.05 0 0(,

0.19

4.15

20.86

0.21

t-.1.72

25.80 26.JJ
Thecontractliabilitiesprimarilyrelatetolheadvancereceivedfromthecustome6forthesar"ffi

when the company meet the performance obligation by delivering the vehicles.

0.05 0.06

0.18

6.54 -11.0I

6.8' 1r.01
I hc ConrpanS's erpnsure lo currcncl and liquidit; risk relatcd to the ahorc ljnancial

liabilities is disclosed in Nore 33

Note: Rcl'er note 3l Ibr agcing schcdule

Disclosures as required undcr the llicro, Sm{ll and }ledium Enterprises Dev€lopment Act, 2006 ("thc Art") bared on the inlo,.||tnli{,[ ar tlilnhl(
Nith thc (-ompanl'are givcn helorr:

lhc principal aDrount remaining unpaid ro an) supplier as ar the end ol'the year 
0.21j

I he inlerest due on lhe principal rentaining o0lstanding as al the cnd ol lhe year

The amounl ol interest paid urrdcr the Act. akntg with the antounts ofthe payntent madc
he),)nd rhe appointed dal during rhc lear

l he anmunt of inlerest due and pa)able fbr lhc period ofdelay in making payment (which
hare been paid but beyond lhe anpointed da) doring the )ear) but $ ithout adding the interesl -
specillcd under thc Act

I he rnx)uDl of iolcresl accrucd llld rcnlaini[B unpaid at the end ol the }.car.
'I 

hc anrount of lirnhcr interesl rr:nraining duc itr)d payabl€ c\cn in the succccding velrs. until
such drte \'hen lhe interest ducs as itbo\e are lctuall] paid to the small enferprise. lbr rhe

purpose ol'disallowance as a dcduclible expenditure under lhe Acl

'! ft.

)r'I



Kutl0kemo Creen Priyrte Limiled
(Fonncrl.^[lukara; Pre Owned Cars pnvate Limtred)
Not.s to rl,! fintncirl ststemerts (corttnued)
(Allnmounts rn millrons )

lll ll 11\riIg\ ((otrtirllrd)

( onrf!l\lnrl\ ( tlrl\(( hl.

InlerCorporole loan

.l{.t9 t5.87

rJ.r)l

tlr t,,tltt.t t t/ttl!\.tt)tt! ltI tt tr lo E tem bofft)vmgs
tinnrttnt!\ir ha,|: li dtklLtl t :ttfitltts carn tnterest ratesfro t.6%b lJ./opetaknvm

\nturc of borroiting \irl|c oflhe lellder
.rl llrrch 2024 3l Mrrch 202J

Sei:urilt terms

\oll-(urrcnl. \('i:Urcd

l'opul$r Vchrclcs and
:71 2J0

The prelerence shares are compulsorill convenible into such no of Equi
Shares ol lhc compan! at an! trme beh\een three months and nlneteen years

from the dale of issuc at the company's optton tased on the valuat,on oaequity
shares at fie time ol conversron Management has eslimaled time ofconveBion
al the end ofthe nrnrccnth year Acco.drngly. the fair value of bonowings
been eslrmaled by drscounring rhe Facc Vatue usrng a drscount mle ot.
for srmilar peflod and the remalning ponron ts allocated as equit) compone

disclosed in statem€nl olchanges in equiry

KoI k Mnhrndra nank t2 t2 Extension ofequrtablc monga8e oler prope(ies situated at Edappally owned
by M/S Kuttukaran Trading Venlures afld at ThiruvananthapuBm owned b),
M/S Kuttukaan Homes l-LP

lln r!ralrnsIlutrons
srndirrl ) frnance Limrted I .li r24

Secured by: (a) hyporhecalion ol lhe Vehicle linanced : and (b) personal
guanntea by director of lhe compan) The loan is repayable in 24 insBlments

ln\cnlo^ Ir ndrng

Popular Vehrcles and

Sen,rces l,rmited

Stare tlanl ol lndia

t0 00

802

'lheTermloansol'Rs:0
l\4n amd l0 [4n carry an interest rale of9 7 t% and

8.6% respcctively with a lenure ot 6 and 5 years. With reSard to lhe second

lerm loan. Lender has the optron ofconversion of

ouisranding loan and rnleresl. \rholl\ or pa(ially tnto Euity

Exclusjve flrst charSe by way ol hypothecation over all presenl and future sbck
and receivables linanced through the e-DFS limit wilh rhe Slale Bank oflnd
including advance rl)mr[ances made ro M/s piaggro Vehicles pivate t_rmr

out offte fitciliD and equitable mongage ovcr propery- satuated ar Cahcul ,n
lhe name of M/s Kullukaran Tradrng Ventures

{i, /\.



{ullukrran Green Private Limited

.. ormerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)
Notes ao thc financisl statements (continued)

(Allamounls in INR millions)

l{ Rcvenuc from oper&tions

Sale of I'roducts

Sales of \ew Vehicles

Sales olSpares And Accessories

Cross revenue

Less: Discount allowed

Year ended

Jt March 202{

Ycar ended 3l
lllarch 2023

| 5l .95

2.38

Other Operating Revenues

Finance and lnsurance Commission

Labour lncome

Discounts and Incentives

Other Operating Revenue

llcconciliation of l.evenue from sale of products and services

I.77

t.9r

1.5l

4.1 8

0.60

0.41

0.20

21.t.59 158.89

2{t.s9 t sti.89

(A) Disaggregate of revenue information

l'he table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the below years

ended by offerings and contract type. The Company believe that this disaggregation best depicts how the

nature, amount, timing and uncenainty ofour revenues and cashflows are effected by industry, market

Sales of New Vehicles

Others

244.94

0.3 5

159.01

0.12

Year e|lded

3l March 202.1

l'car ended 3l
\larch 2023

222.s6

22.O3

15 t.95

6.9s

l'i Iticula Is

:l{.59

Revenue by contract type

l:ixed price

l tt.59

(ll) Contrscl balances

f'ha follotei H table provides inform ior sboul tra e receivables and conlract li.tbililies .front

)t4

r58.90

1.1.1.59 158.90

l5li.90

c

+

1AJ

222.56

.65

/t',



Pa rticula rs

Trade receivables

Contract Iiabililics

Particulars

Within I year

I .3 years

More than 3 years

Closing balance

l5 Other income

Interest lncome on Rent Deposits (Notional)

Miscellaneous lncome

Provision for doubtful debts written back

Provision for Ieave encashment written back

Inleresl on ll Refund

l6 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Vehicle

Spares and accessories

l7 Change in invcntories of stock-ir-trade

Opening stock

Closing stock

l8 Employee benelits expeose

Salaries and allowances

Contribution to Provident & Other Fund

Provision for Leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity

Staff welt'are expenses

't ear ended

Jl ]larch 2021

Year ended 3l
Uarch 2023

7.t l

1.15

.r.61

t 3.71

0.12

t.09

0.t0

0.2.1

0.03

0.01

196.49

9.14

153.79

4.60

1.11 I ..t.71

l.tI tJ.rl

(C) Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance

obligations thal arc unsarisfied (or partially satisfied) at the reponing date.

Year ended

3l lllarch 2021

\ ear ended

3l \l a rch 202f

1.25 0..11

206.23 | 58..t8

t6.75

8.56

2.29

t6.75

8.19 ( I {.J6)

r6.28

t.34

1.25

019

.0l

0.84

0.09

0.0 7

0.03

t9. t6 11.01

!

$

\



19 Finsnce cost

Interest on kase Liability

Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Prefetence Shares

Interest on [-oan

20 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Amortisation on Right of Use ( ROU) Asset

21 Other expenses

Traosportation charges

Power, water and fuel

Insurance Charges

Rates and taxes

kgal, professional and other consultancy

Travelling and conveyance

Rent

Printing and stationery

Bank Charges

Worts Charges

Communication

Sales Promotion Expenses

Miscellaneous expmses

Provision for doubtful debts

1.59

0.23

4.45

t.25

0.24

t.66

6.27 3.15

I .18

0.05

3.84

0.78

0.05

2.86

s.07 3.69

0.37

1.10

0.18

0.60

0.67

t.z3

2.88

0.20

0.19

1.02

0.26

0.5 3

1.01

0.00

0.34

0.76

0.21

0.10

0.70

0.88

2.15

0.13

0.37

0.43

0.26

0.75

0.91

10.24 7.99

t

)ee



Kllttukrin Creen Privitc l,imited
{l ol]r. ,\ Krrnuki]ratr l)rc O\!ncd Cars Privatc Limited)

Notts to the financirl$lrlcments (continued)

(.\ll rnrounts in lNlt milliuns)

22 E:rrnings/(loss) per shere

A. Bssic carnings/(k)ss) per share

l,url\)\c ol bx\iu crrrrinn\ pcr sharc calculations are as fbllo\!s:

i) \ct pr'otit/(loss) altributable to equity share holders (basic)

Yenr ended

Jl Nlarch 2024

\ ear ended

3l March 2023

Nel prolit/(hss) ti)r thc year. attributablc to the equity share holders (A)

ii) \\ righlcd n\ emgo number of equit! shares (basic)

Nunlbcr o, cquit\ shiLrcs nl thc beginnitrg ol the period.(Relcr notc 9)

\\ cightcd ar clagc nulther ol equil) sharcs o, lNR l0 each during the period (t])

lirnrinur tlo'r ) pcr' ,lrirrc , llasic (,\,ll ) ( llupec per share hasis;

l':rrti(ulirs

\.r prolili(loss) lor tltc pcril)d. attribulablc to the equity share holdcrs(A)

ii) \\ right(d irr rlagr nunrber of cquit) shares (diluted)

Perticuhrs

Weighted averagc n urn bcr ol equity shares of lN R l0 cach tbr lhe period (basic)

\\cightcr.l arciaSc nurnb.r ofequity shares ol'lNR l0 each tbr rhe period (dilured)(B)

I nring:\ ( lo:s) pcr sh rc. diluted(A/B) (Rupce per share basis)

\ ear ended

3l lllrrch 2024

Year ended

.31 Mrrch 202J

t 7 .26)

t0.000

1.76.500

(8.7 r )

t().000

10.000

lll.li) (870.63 )

Ycar ended

3l March 2023

( 8.7 r )

B. Diluted earnings/(lo!s) per shrre

I hc calculation ol protiyloss attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding, afler
adjustment lbr rhe ellccts ol'all dilurive potential equity shares is as follows:

i) Net profiu(loss) rnributrblc to equity shrre holdcrs (dilutcd)

l'ena ended

3l March 2024

17.26]-

'l ear endcd

Jl l\Irrch 202,1

t0.000

1.76.500

Yeo. ended

3l March 2023

t0.000

10.000

(r t.t5) (870.61)

t)ilutcd hamings Per Share is not computed since the number of Equity shares to be issued on conversion of Pretbrence Shares would be
dctcrmined only at a luturc date based on valuation to be taken once the option is exercis€d.

23 Auditors' remuner{tion included in Legal Professional and Oth€r Consultancy Expenses
(\et of Coods and Serr ices Tar)

l'n rliculxrs \ car endcd

Jl Ilarch 202{

Yerr ended

f,l Morch 202J

0.06

0.04

0.05

0.01

{.
l)
:i

./d]

SlxtLrlor\ itu(1il

Othcr Scrr iccs

'l'otal
0.10 0.09



liuttukarlrn Creen Private Limited
onncrl\ Kuitukaran lrre Orvncd Cars private Limited)

Notes to the financisl statements (continued)

24 Leases

The Companl has adopted Ind AS ll6'Leases'with the date ofinitial application being April t.2021. Ind AS replaces Ind AS l9
l'eases and related inlerpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS ll6 $ith initial applicarion is recognised in the

ttllorring a|c rhc changes in the carrying value ofright of use assets

I-he aggregale depreciation expense on RoU asset is included under depreciation and amonisation expense in the Statement of
Prolit and Loss

the ldllovin is thc breakup ofcurrent and non-cul.Ient lease liabilities

J'he tbllorting is lhe movement in lease liabiliries

\ lal uri Analysis - Contraclual undiscounted cash llows

Particulars Year ended

f,l March 2024

Year ended

3l March 2023

11.82

6.69

0.72

3.7 t

16.57

2.75

Opening balance lbr. rhe period

Add: Additiorrs

l-c5s: R.\ c$al ol llO[] assel due to cancellation ol lease agreement

I cr.:.\nrorlisntioi

Closing Balnnc€ t6.u8 1J.82

Particulars Year cnded

Jl 1\larch 202{

Year ended

3l Nlarch 2023

('urrent lease liabilities

Non-currcnt lease liabilities
3.31

t4.82

2.23

12.95
l'otal

18.19 15.18

Pnrticulrrs Year cnded

ll N'larch 202t
Year ended

3l March 2023

IJ,I8

6.69

1.59

0.8.'l

4.44

1.26

3.t'7

Add: lrinance (osl accrued during the period as per IND AS ll6
I ess: I{c!crsal ol liabilil), due 10 cancellalion oflease agreement

Lcss: l,crse liabilirl lbr the peliod as per renl agreement
(-losing Balance

Opening balance lbr the period

Add: Additions

I8.19 t5.t8

Pa iculars Yerr ended

3l Illarch 202,1

Year encled

3l l\'larch 2023

l-css thar one,rcar

OIc to l:i\c ) cors

\'lorc than lj\ c \cars

4.78

15.'7 I

2.08

3.32

t4.36

3.45
l'otal undiscounted lcasc liabilities

2 r. t.l

t't.09



Kunuktrrn Green Privrte Limited

(Formerly Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)

Not€s ao the fi rdclrl strtem€nts (contlnued)

(A1l amounts in INR millions)

25 Employee b€nefits

B Dellned Bercfit Phn

The company op€rates cerrain post-employment d€fined benefir plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an

indep€ ent aclua.y using rhe projected unil credit method. The company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Cratuity

Act, I 972('Gratujty Act).

Based on an actuarial valuation obrained in this resp€cr, foltowing table s€ts out the status ofthe benefit plan and the amounts r€cognis€d iD the

company's standalone frnancial statements as at balance sheet date.

C R€cotrciliition of net defined b€nelh (rstets)nirbility

i)Reconciliation ofpresett 1,al es ofdertned bene.lit obligation

The following rable shows a reconciliation Som the op€ning balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (assetyliability and its

Prrticulars
As at 3l Mrrch

2024

As rt 3l Mrrth
2023

D€Iin€d benetlt obligrtiotr rs rt the beginning of the yerr

Cunent service cost

Interest cosl

Benefits paid

R€-meisurcments

Actuarial Gaitr7(loss) recognised in other comprehensive itrcome

-{rhanges in financial assumFions

0.09

0.1,1

0.01

(0.01)

0.03

0.0?

(0.00)

0.02

Dcfined benefit oblisatiotr !i.t the €nd ofthe yerr 0.26 0.09

As at 3l Mrrch
2024

As at 3l March

2021

Detined Benefil Plan

Net Defined betrefit li{biltty/(Asset)

Liability for compensated absences

Totil employee benefit lirbilitJ / (Asset)

Non-currenr defi ned benefit liability

Cunent def'ined beoefit liability

0.26

0.86

(0.60)

0.14

(0.4s)

0.10

0.05

0.09

0.41

(0.37)

0.11

(0.20)

0.11

0.06

As at 31 March

2024

As .t 31 Mrrch
2t23

Phtr assets rt the bcgLrdtrg of the yerr

Contributions paid inlo the plan

Benefits paid

lnterest income

- changes in d€mo$aphic assumplions

- retum on plan assel

0.47

0.15

0.0,r

0.01

0.06

0.40

0.00

0.01

Bshnce at the end ofthe 0.86 0.47

Movement ln Ass€t Cciling

- Opening Value of Assel Ceiling

Interesl on opening balance ofassel ceiling

in Ass€t Ceil

0.13

0.01

0.0? 0.13

Bshnce sl the end ofthe r-.etr
0.20 0.13

A Delined contributiotr pltn

The company makes cortnbutions, derrmineal sp€cified percentage of employ€es salaries, in r€spect of qualivng employees torvads providenl

fund and other funds which ate d€fined contribution plans. The company has no obligalion othe. tban lo make specified contributions. The

contnbulions are charged to the staterncnt ofprofit and loss as they accrue.



Employce benrfi ts (continued)

) Reconcilialion ofpresent 1,alue ofplan assets

D !:rpens€s rccognised in the \tandalonr statcmcnt of profil rnd loss

(i) llr rircd in lhc slnndrlo 0 st/lrnr. l of fil rnd lost

As rl Sl Nlrrch
2l)2t

\\ rl3l \lllr(h
:02J

Cufienl service cosl

Net rnteresl on net defined IiabiliD_

Emplo}!r contribution

014

(0 02)

007

(0 00)

\e( gratuit\ cosl 0.t 2 0.0'

(ii isr{.1 in othcr com

E Plrn Assct

Plan assel c

\s rl3l llsrcft
2021

ls .t 3l \larch
2023

Funds manaSed by Lrfe lnsurance Corporauon of India i t'

F- I)efined llrnefit Obli{rli(,n
(i) \ctusrirl \\ IDtions

lhtli)lo$rlr! rrthcfrrrcrfr ].r!] r r\\unrpr,,f\irllhcrc|]orlrfgd (tr\pr!sscdar$erghredaterngc)

l'rrliculrrs As al3l Mrrch
2021

.{s at Jl \lxrrh
2023

Drscounl rate

SalaN Browlh ratc

Werghlcd alerage duratron oaJellned benelil oblrq3ll(nr

7.150/.

6.U)o/o

25% p a wftdrawal

€tc al allages

1 }Ao/a

? 0090

l5o'opa!\rthdra$al

rale ar )llr8r\

'fhc $erShled a!erage assumptrons used ro derermrnc n.r penodrc benetjt cosl as ser out belo$.

ol governmcnt secufl ties

b) Craturly is applicable onlv to empiolees \.r'ho have completed five years ofservice and drarvinB a salary in lndran rupecs and lhcre are no oiher lbrr'rgn

delined benellt gratutt). plans

(ii) Sensilivity rnrllsis
Ileasonably possrble changes at the reporlrng dale () one ol lhc acluanal assumplrons- holdrng olher assumptrons constant. !\ould ha\r dllicrsd lhe

.\s rt 3l \lllrch
2r21

\s ,t ll \lxr(h
2023

OCI sl th. b.ginning ofth. y.ar

Actuaflallgqin)/ loss on defined benellt obhgation

Changes rn financrsl assumptions

Changes in demoBraphic assumptions

Experience adjustment

Retum on plan assel excludlng rnlerest rncome

Ad.tushent to recognize lhe ellecl ol asset ceihng

o 14

(0 0l)

00l 001

(rr{rlr

,i ll

(0 00)

( l0sirg:rrourl r€coenired in (X I 0. t6 0.tl

3l Msrch 202,1 .31 M{rch 2023

Dascount ratc (0.57o movement)

Future $lary growth (0 5olo movement)

-2.800/o

2 gto/.

2.91'/o

-2 U./o

-3 t10/o

3 310/o

3.31o/.

-].2ff/o

q. G 
'tl.

defined bcnefit obl tfie arnounts shown i'elo$



l(uxulirEn Gr..n Prirrre Limit.d
,lonncdr-\ilr (ara i\e Osncd Csh private l. nat.d)

\olr.s lo tft. linso(i{l shtcDcnts (conrinucd)

76

3l M.rct 202t .Il llrrch 202J

096

r),1i8

00{
051

6.10

0.07

0.04

0.06

021

003

0 tt

004

035

4..t6

126

0.12

l.(2

lnco|ne tsr ass.tv(lirbili$)
lDcolrc ta\ asselr (ndt

\et incoDe trr sssetv( lix bitin ) at rhe en.t

I)eruld tx\ nssclv(lhbiliries)
l)(lirlrd itr.omr ln\ nsr(

ln,t).,(r nr t,rd;\S Ik,
L rr\,iin\r losscs

Pr1^rson lbr gl'nllu\

Renreartre rcnr ol Nct Dctined Benetil Assel

Prolnon lbr eDpld\e. be elirs

Tol{ldcrcrred inconrc ll1\ assets

l)€fred itr$ok tr\ liabilitic\
, ,.t ,.rf

l.rnl rl(l(rr.(l i .on'( ti\ linhititi$
l)tler.J rtr\ Ln. r.L\ .r.' r ,rhrr \el rtl
ln.o r( hr .\rens. / ( hcnctits )

6.70 t.62

(iii) \lolcnrcnl in remporln differences

I .rpril20!J

( brrse/ (credir) itr Ch.rge/ (credit, in

otter comprehcmire
Jl \li rch lo21

\lo\crknr durinp rh. t(rr endd J I

l'jr.\ r\hI lor er p or(. l)e,r.t]l:

Rrr)ra{!c$c r oi N.er l){llNd Bcnclir

Pro!rron lbr gEtu \
Leave Encalhnlent

Lr3se lirbil cs, impacr on aeoufl of
ASI16

\.(\\ Lir JLpr..rrrtr,r ,trr trL)pc rr p r r

,ril((,, t{,( LnJu (tnl( I.t\ r\( l()t,
, ,(' Lir n(.L.Lt L! I r(icr ( Ltrnt,rrlc\ \d.

L.ur\ r\r\. 11jt t.o\\(\
\cl dcf.nd trr ns*U (liabiliry) rt thr

(012)

0 t5

0.03

004

0 :r5

.t,62

(J 07

-015

I 9.1

2.06

006

007

-0 0r

0.01

0.0r

021

0.04

0.06

0.07

004

053

6,69

Uorrmenl during thr tcir erdcd J I

\la'(h 202J I lprilIlr22

RecoStri.ed ( harte/ (credit) in (lh.ee/($edit) i.
other comlrehrnsire

JI \larch 202-l

Itr^\(rt nn empk^ft bcn.tir'
ReDB.NUr.nr.nr nl \d lr.,ined Be elll

L.asc lmbrltres. unpact on ao.ounr of tlld
.{s lt6

E\cers ol dcprcciario[ on property, platrt

and equiprne under Income Tu Acl. t96t
over d€pre.rahon oder (onpaores Acr.

'lrll
r nn\ l,{\.r(irrr I \\>.\
\(r d(l'rn\l In\ !$.tl (lirbitif!) at

002

0 t3

(0 l2)

ttt
r,62

0lt

002

o22

(0 20)

Illt

2.97

001

0,0J

0 tJ

003

004

0tJ

10 .l: )

1.1'2

gr

,/-...-.
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Kuttukaran Creen Private Limited
(Formerly Kuttukamn Pre Owned Cars ?iivate Limited)
Notes to the litrsncial statenrc s (cotrtinued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

27 Relrted partier

I. Names ofrelated parties and desciption ofrelationship

(a) Holding Company (From 04.04.2022)

(b) Erstwhile Holding Company (Till 04.04.2022)

(b) Associates

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Popular Auto Works Private Limited

Popular Auto Dealqs Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited, India

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Vision Motoff Private Limited, Emakulam

(c) Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP)

Mr. Naveen Philip, Director

Mr. Francis K Paul, Director

Mr. John K Paul, Director

Mr. Llyod Franklin Dsouza, Director

Mr. P.J Shice, Director

ll. Related party transactions

a The C tmnsactions with

ReYenue from Operations

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 1.7 t

Expenres met on behalfofthe comDa[v

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited 0. i16

Loan Received

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 30.00

Loan Repaid

Naveen Philip

lssue of Preference Shares

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 15.00

lssue of EquitY Shares

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 5.00

Gii

Particulars

t
*

u

9

Year ended

3l March 2024

Year ended

3l March 2023

20.r8



Purchase ofAsset

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services [-imited 0.7 6

Purchase o f InventoN

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

0.00

0.40

III, B ble hlc to relale[l

Receiva blc

Po ular Auto Dealers P vate t,imited L81

Payable

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited [nter-corporate loan

ular Vehicles and Services Limited

30.00

0.02

0.03

..P)"g I'l(

ReDair and Main tenance erDcnses

Vision Motors Private t-imited 0.02 0.0 r

CorDomtc C ua ra nlee Com mission exoenses

Popular Auto Dealers Private l,irnited

Popular Vehicles and Services l-irnited

0.03

0.14

o.01

I nterest and Commission ExDense

Popular Vehicles and Services t.imited 0. l9

Ernenses met the comDanl

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited

0.22

0.t4

0.26

0.15

0.0 t

0.2s

0.t2

Pr l.ficu l, rs
Year cnded

3l March 2024

Year ended

3l Ma rch 2023

4,
lco



.uttuksrsn Green Private Limited

(For-rnerll' Kuttukaran Pre Owned Cars Private Limited)

Notos to th0 financial statemenrs (continued)

(All anrourlls in lndian rupees nrillion)

28 Capital Malsgement

The Cornpany's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and

to sLlslain lLtttrc developtnent of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of retum on capital employed

as rrell as lhc dcbt to total equity ratio. For the purpose of debt to total equit) ratio, debl considered is long-term and

sho -tenn borrowings. Total equity comprise ofissued share ca ital and other equit)

29 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of purchase and sales of vehicles and related services. The entire operations

are organised and managed as one organisational unit with the same set of risks and retums, hence the same has been

consideled as representing a single primary segment. The company renders its services in lndia only and does not have

an) operations in economic environments with different risks and returns; hence it is considered operating in a single

geographic segment. Accordingly no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements

//
:(

Pa rticu la rs
As at

.ll March 202,1

As at

3l lllarch 2023

1'otal equity attributable to the equity shareholders

of thc company (i.02) (0.76)

,\s I perccntnge of total capital 0% 0%

l.ong - tenn bonowings 33.31 t3.02

Short - term borrowings 0.8 8 10.87

Total Borrou ings l-1.19 23.89

As a pcrcentage of total capital I 00% t000..,0

1-otal capital (hquit)' and borrowings) l3.ll

i.

I
I

3t.t6



Kuttn, ..r Cren Prlvrtc Llmltcd

(ForErly Kmukrran Prc olrrEd C&ls PrivtL LimiEd)

Note. to lh€ fin.[cl.l tt aem. r (cooltuu.d)

(All armunts in millions )

A Accountiag chcrlfic.tloG rnd frir v.ln€s

Th€ folloqing lable shows the carryins armunts and fairvalu€s of finaicial asiets and finatrial liabilities. nEludins their levels in llE fair value hieErchy

l0 Fi.rnci lBtrumcDB- F.ir vrlue3 rnd risl m.nitemenl

As rt3l March 2024

{r rl3l \larch 2021

tiorDclrl
r$et rr Y.drtorily !t

imorlbd cosl I PL

Olher fln.rcid
lirbillliB rl

Totrl
c.rryinS Level I Level2 L.vel I Total

&!tE
Flrrmhl tsse6 ma meaured rt f.lr t.llx
Cash ard cash equivalent!

olh€r fiiarrial assers

l.lr$lcl.l rr.cb merr!rcd .t frlr vdre

Rart D€oo6lt (Incld.d ln other nmmtrl A!.er')

1

8

lt _26

1_lt

t.56

11.26

'7.n

1.56

5.19 5.19

|.26
7lt
t.56

l1.26

7ll
t.56

5.39 5.3e

19.91 5.19 ls.t2 19.91 5.39 25.12

UrUUgs!
FIn rill lhDitldcr ln€.!ur.d rt ff|orti..d cct

Lase liabiliri€s

ll
t0

24

).14

6.82

31.45

t8.t9

6.t2

3{.19

It. t9

6.82

3 r.45 2.74

t8.19

6.t!
l.t. | 9

lE.t9

2.14 56.116 59.20 ltt.27 :0.93 59.20

A Accoundng ch..lficrdoE .nd f.i. v.lue.

TIle following rabl. shows ihc c:rryin3 snDunis and fair valucs offinarcirlass.rs aDd fim'al liabiliries, irrludins rhen bvels in rtE fair wl'r hierurtiy

t-lmncirl

T\ IPL

Other firmchl
lirbllhl6 al

Torrl
l,€v.l I Level, Lcael S Tot l

Fh.a.irl rrr..t ml m.$rr€d ri fdr y.loc

Cash and crlh €quivalenrs

Flrrn hl rleb rrl€riu!.d rt frir v.lll€

R.cnt D.pctl (INluded ln otb€r fl ftl.lAr.Gt!) s

2_21

162

l.2l

2.22

3_62

3_23

LE7 2.87

2.22

l.6l
3.23

)_22

1.62

).23

1.87 t.87

Tol!l 2.A1 I1.95 9.011 1.E7 I !.95

LE!!!!!&r
Flrrncli lhb ldei tn.I.ured rr uortir.d c6t
Ti:de pa,"bles

Borowings t
Lase liabilities

I]
l0

74

150

32_O4

2l t8
t5.t8

32.04

23.t9

l5.lE

12.04

2r l8 2.50

15.18

32.ft

23.E9

t5.lt
T.tal ?.50 6t.60 7t.lt 5-1..12 t7.68 7t.lI

M.tlu€tn trt oI fiir vrlG
Tlte fat valu€ ofdr firBrcial instrurEr*s is &termiEd usirg discourned cash floe arsllsis. The discoud raEs uscd is bascd on rEragpnEnr esrimatcs.

kvd r fdr vdu..

kvd 2 frll vrlocr
IDvcsurE in rrmral firds - is unqmtcd pricc and .re obscF"blc for dE assel or lirbilig'. eidter dircctiy (i.c., as pric6) or indiEctly (i.e

tav.l 3 f.ll vdu6
IforE or rDE ofrhe sisniftrrt irp{rs i! lEt b€!.d on obs€.rabh d.ra- lh. irdrurtEdr i5 nEidcd in lcvcl 3.

,@,N
t!",' '',",\

w/
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KultuL ^r Creen Privrte Limited
(l'onrcrl\ l..ullukaran Pre ()$ncd Cars Private Limited)

\otcs to th. finrocirl sr{(emetlts (contioued)

( ll anrcunls in INR milli(nls)

Tr&de receiv{blcs sgeing schedule

,\s at Jl llrr(h 2021

l'r rliculrtr\ l-css ths n 6

months

6 months - I
year

l-2 ) rars 2-J years
llorc lhen 3

-tea rs

ted lradc recci\,ablcs considercd 7.n 000 7.1I
ii)Llndispuled Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk

iii)Undi utcd Trade Receivablcs crcdit r.d

1.tt 0.00 'i.t I

l rnde l)a]ahkr ag(iltg \chedulc
Outstaoding for tbe followinB periods from the d r date of psyment\\ il \lnrch ll.1(ll{

\ot duc
Less thrn I

Yesr
l-2 I (:trs 2-3 I ears lr)rnl

028 it.l8
Olhcrs 6. i4 (i.5.{

Disputcd Dues- MSME

l)tr utcd l)ucr. othcrJ

Total 6.5J {t.28 6,82

.\s nt Jl \lrrrh 202J

l'nrticrlNrs
Less thrn 6

olo,lths

6 months - I
l-2 years 2-J years

\lore than J

!errs
lot l

i)1.lndis led lradc receivirblcs considercd good 362 J.62
ii)t-lIdisputed Trade Receivables which have significsnt
inrrease in credit risk

iii)Undi rcd fradc Reccivables - crcdir i

.!.62 3.62

\\ nl \larch 31.20!J

Outstaodiog [or the follo$ iIg periods from thc due datc of peyment

l'nr(irI h r\
Less lhao I

Yerr
l-2 I eirs 2-J I e.rs

Itore th, n J 'l otal

N{SM I]

( )thers l2 (r.l 3:.0{
Disprled l)ues- MSN4E

I)r\ led l)uct- o$cr\

l(nal .]2.0{ 31.0{

l'Ir'li(ulars Nlore thro 3
Yerrs

MSME

Totul

I
I



32 Rltios Ls p€r the Schedule lll requlrement!

r Curr.rr Rrrto = Cur.ertAiscts divided Currenl Liabiliti€s

Debt |tquit! ratio = Totsl d€bt divided by Totll equllv where totll debr relers ro sum of current & non current

3 lhbt S.rvic€ Cov€rrge R..lio If,BITDAJ(Inrere.r C6t + lrng tcrm +shorl term borroeings)l

5 :iet Srles

Kurrkrrrn Creen P.lvrte Limit8d

( Formerly Kuttukaran PrE O\ ned CaIs Private Limiled)

\ores to the lirsn.l.t strten*nts (continued)

(Allamounts in INR Milljons)

Rer.otr ,or v.rlrc. mor€ th.n 257.

Th€ ircrease in rEvenue was otrs€l by the incrcase in €xpendihle.

Ylrch 31. 2024 Nlsrch 3I.2013

Totrl d.bt

Total equity

Ratio

% Chetrae tfrD Drevious lEar

34.19

(3.02)

(t l.3t)

44%

21.89

(0.76)

(L43)

R€rron for vrrlince nmre thrtr 25./.

The ac€'Inulated losses causes for th€ det€riontion ofth€ mtio.

{

unr(h 3!.10:4 Vrrch 31.2023

EBITDA

InterEsr Cost

Borrowings

D€bt S€rvic. Coverrgc RrttD

% Chanse liom p€vious !€ar

2.02

6.27

14. t9

0.03

-t2v/o

t4.731

l.r5
23.89

(0.17)

R.&ron Ior vrrirlcc morc th.n 25%

Incr€ase in bonowings du€ to intusion of intercorporate loan

Rrturn on f,qulty Rrrio / R.turn on ltrv6tm€nt Rrlio = N€t pronr dter rrl divided b) Equit]

urrch 31, 202.4 Mrrch 31,2023

Nei Profit afier iax

Total equity

Ratio
o/o ChanSE ftoD prevrous ),e3r

(1.26\

(3.02)

2.40

-790/o

18.71)

(0.76)

I 1.46

Reoson for vlrirnce mor€ lhln 25%

The accumulared loss€s c.uses for the detenomtion ofttE r"lio

M3rch 31.2024 March 3l .2023

Cwrent Liabilities

Ratio

% Chanse from Drevious !,Ear

35.21

36.92

0.95

1"t./o

58.40

71.53

0.82

\llrch.l l. 202.t Ilarch 31.:021

Net Profit aficr lar
Salcs

Ratio
o/. Ctange fom Drcviorrs ]€ar

(7.26\

244.59

(0.01)

46./o

(8.71)

t58-89

(0.0s)

o

4 d



6 I nventor! Turnover Rrdo - Co6r of mitcrtd. colllun|ed dlvld.d Dr_ clo.lng lnventort'

Rc$on for vrrhnce eore lbrn 257.
Bettcr invcdory mamgonenl implenrcnled resulting highly coololled invcnlory lelels. so beder ratios

R.rsotr for vrrl.nce ttlore th.n 25%

B€tler inlenlory manasement implemented resulting b€ttcr palEble managem€nl

Mrrch 31, 2024 Mar.h 31.2{123

Purchas€ ofsrock in rra& [a]

ChangEs in inventories ofsloct-i -uade [b]

C6t of Mrtcrlrl Con uncd l.l+lbl
Closing Inventory

Ratio

70 Chang€ fiom prEvious F.r

2M.23

8.t9

2t4.41

8.50

t5.8E

451%

t58.4

(14.5)

141.9

50.49

lls.ch ll. 2024 Usrch 3r.2023

Toul incom€

Current Asler [a]

Curr€nt Liability [b]
N.t woruDg C.dt l ld-lbl
R6tio

70 Chan8c frorn prcvious ,€ar

245.84

35.21

36.92

(1.71)

(r4t.93)

t087rh

159.23

58.40

71.53

01.13)
( 12. r3)

8 Trrd€ Rr.€ivrble Turnover Ratio 'rolal lncome/Trrde Re&ivrblc

9 Return on Crpltd emploJed=Earnings b€fore intereil snd trres(EBIT) dlvided br Clpitrl f,mployed

\lffch 31.2024 March 31.20:.3

EBIT

Toral Asscr [r]
CuflEnt Liability [b]

C.pltd Empl,oycd lrl-lbl
Rario

%Changr from previons y.ir

(3.05)

82.39

36.92

45.41

(0.07)

-79.U./o

(8.42)

96.85

7 t.53

25.]2

{.t3

Rel.o.r for vrrlarce aore thatr 257.

Increrse in capital emplolrd lo fund the losses broughl down lhe ratio.

l0 Trode of stock in tradrllrade

uarch ll, 1024 \Iarch Jl.l0l.l
Pur.has€ of Sto(k in tnde

Tnde Palable

Trade PaFble Turnovcr Ratio

7. Ct.ng. fto[| pr€Ylous y!.r

206.23

6.82

10.21

5|o/o

r58.38

t2.u
4.94

Reilon for vrri.nc€ more thrn 25%

Beller irlenrory rnanagemeot impleh€nt€d result€d in bcrler palable manag€menr

$ Lita)

'\'a

Urrch.ll, 202.1 Uarch.ll.202.l

Tolal hcome

Tr.de Rcccir?bl.

Trrdc Raaclvrble Turnover Rrdo

% Chang. Iiom pEvious,tar end

245.84

7.1I

34.56

-21.4tr/,

t59.21

3.62

43.97

Net crplt l Tumover R*io = Totrl lncolD. dlvld€d by NGt WorHDg crpltd wh.rc.5 ncl wortiDg cirit F currcnt .s.L -

curreot ll.billtt i7



i)

ii)

Kunukrrun Gre€n PriYat Llmlted

Norer to th€ flnrnchl .tctcm.nts (contlnucd)

(Allamounrs in INR in millions)

33 flnrn.hl In.truments- Fair vrluef and rill mrn.gement (contlnu€d)

B Fl nclrl ri.I mrnryement

Ihe Group! aclivities expose il to a variety offinancial nsks: credil nsk. liquidiry.sk and marlet risk.

CrEdn nsk is conlroll€d by anal)Eing crEdit limils and crcditwonhiness of cusroln€ls on a condnuous basis to whom credir has b€eo grrnred after obr,aining neccssary

approvals for credit. The collec on &om lhc trade receivables are monilored on a codlinuous basis by lhe r€ccivablcs rcam.

Rlrt mrn.g.mcnt fr.m.*orl
The Group's board ofdirectoG (1he Board') has oveEll responsibility for the establishment and oversight ofthe risk manaSement fi'amework. They ove6€e how managcment

Croup. The Board is assisled in ils ov€rsigh role by inlcmal audi! Inlemal audir undenakes both rcgular aod ad hoc rviews of risk management conrols and procedures, rhe

resuhs ofwhich are rcponed to the Board.

Credll rtrk
Crcdil risk is the nsk that the counlerpany will not heel its obligarion under a financial instrument or customer contrac! leadi[g lo fnancial loss. The cr€dit risk aris€s

firancial instrummts.

ro credit risk for trade rE elvables was as folloss:

.31 Mrrch 2024 -31 M$.h 2023

7.t I 3.62

7.u 3.62

lmp.irment !nllysiB

Ihe oIlmde rEten"blcs rs as folloss

Tlle mo\.ement in alloq ance for credil loss in of lmde and olher rEcei\ables

ll llarch:01{ 3l }lrrch 2023

t ss lhan I ,ear
l-2 )€ars

2-3 )lars
More than I )€ars

7.1I l.6l

7.lt .1.61

No single cuslomer accounl€d for more lhan l0% ofthe revenuc. There is no significani conc.ntralion ofcredit dsk.

Credil tisk or! cash 6nd cash cquir?l€nl a othcr banl b.lances is limi&d as rhc c.oup gEnelally Fallsacts *ith brnks sr fnancial institutions vith high crEdit Btings
assi8ncd by domestic ctdil nting ag€nci.s.

Allof,ance for credit lois
Jl Uarch 2024 3l -rtirch 2023

Balance at the besinning

Provision crealed during th€ y€ar

lmpairment loss recognised./ (rcve6ed)

ffi



ri) l.iquidil! rlsk

both normal and strrssed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to lhe crouP s rcputatron.

The Company b€licves thal fie worting crpital is suffici€nt ro meel ils currEn( requiEments- Accordirgly, no liquidity risl is petceived.

The rable b€low provides dcrails r€gardiag the undiscounred conraciuil maturities of lignificanl financial liabilities as of 3 I March 2024:

Ihe tabl€ b€low pror ades d€tails r€garding rhe undiscounEd contractual mrtundes of signi ficanr tinancial liabilities as of 3 I Mrrch 2023

Prtsble $lthin I \lore lhlo I
Total

Trdde payables

BorrowinSs #

t-eas€ liabiliti€s

Other fi nancial liabilities

6.54

0.88

1.37

0.28

30.57

14.82

6.82

_L45

I8.19

Palabl( silhin I Yo.e ihan I
Totrl

Tr"de pa)€bles

BonowinSs #

lese liabilities

Other fi nancial liabilities

32.04

t0.87

J.12

t0.52

17.81

32.M

21.38

21.13

Xurukrrln Creen Pritate Limited

:"lotes to the finsncill strlemertt (continu€d)

(Allamounts in INR in millions)

33

iv)

Flnrnchl Inrtrumcnts- fsk vrlucs rnd rblmrtl.gement (condnucd)

MrII€r rltt
Marlcr rist is lhe risk thar ihe EiI valuc of fuiure cash flows of a financial insrrumenr will lluctuatc b€crus€ of changes in madrct pric€s, such as forcign exchangc rat6,

interesl mles and equity prices.

Forcign corrcmy rltk
The Croop is expos€d lo currcncy risl Io rhe exlmr ihar lher€ is a mismatch beB_€en the curr€ncies in which transactioos arc d€nominat€d and th€ fnctional currency oithe

Oroup. The functional curency of the Group is INR and the croup does noi have any material foreign cun€ncy tnnsactions during the y€als ended 3l MarEh 2024 & ]l
March 2021

Cr.h llo* rnd f.lr v3lue lnt r.rt r.L rlrl
The Group's main intcrEst rEtc risk ariscs tom long'term and shof-rerm bonowings with variable mtes, which s\pose the Group lo cash flow interst ralc risk- Th€ inl€tEst

rare on rh€ Crcup's financial instumenrs is baled on marlcl :at6. The Group monilo rhe movqnenl in interEsl ralcs on all orSoing basis.

(r) lnter.st rst rtuk€rpo.ur€

Tlle ofrhe at lhe end ofthe year arc as follows:

lmprct on p.ofit or (loss) lmpicl on other comporents of

3l Mrrch 2024 lll \tff.h 20rl 3l Mrrch 2024 3l Mrrch 2023

l% increase in va.iable mre

I 9'o decreasc in Yariable rale

(0.02)

0.02

(0.l3)

0.13

The inter€sr mte sensirivity is based on the closing balance ofvariablemte bonowings li1rff banks and financial inslitulions.

IT
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\

?o^' .)

l'lnsncirl liabilitlca (benk borro* ings) As ct 3l
tlirch 2024

As at 3l Mrrch 2013

Variable laG long rerm borrowinss including current maturilies L7l ll.l6
Variable ratc shon rcrm borroq ings \]
'I otrl rariahle rsre borro$i.gs l.7l 21.-1t
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+
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Kunohrln Cren Priv e t.imited ( Formcl' Kuttukr., Pr€ Or d Cir. Prit.le l-imited)

Deprecirtioo Strtemcnl for Income lnx Purp66 fo. the Yer E ed 31.03.2024

I'ARTICt I,ARS
WDV AS ON

01.04.2023

\DDt I tO\S
Dt]I,ETIONS TOTAI- RA',t u DI]PRE( IATIO\ \r'Dv AS ON 31.03.2024

Buildins a511472{n I.59.778.J1 1.r7.I.250.33 0.10 I0.15.316.12 1.07.t7.914.2t

Fumilure& l-illings 1.02.379.00 5,7t,036.20 8.73.415.20 0.10 58.789.7t 8.14.625.49

Conputer 626.409.00 61.600.00 t.t t-569.50 7.99.578.50 0.4t1 2.97.517.50 5.02.061 00

Ofrce EquipnEnts 32.794.00 7.2E8. t9 40.082.19 0.15 5.465.7 t 14.6t6.48

ll.0t-051.98 13.0t.05t.98 0.15 97.578.90 12.03.473.08

El€ctric vehicles' t7.5t.406.00 17.5t.406.00 (l .l(l r0.50.841.60

2.41.046.00 2.41.046.00 0.15 16.r56.90 2.04.889.10

2.34..180.00 19.925.00 2_54.405.00 0.15 36.666-38 2.t7.718.61

Toul I,17,6t,986.00 61.600.00 51,70,6,19.20 t.69.9{.215.20 22.:1E,071.61 r.,r7..t6.16 t .59

(') Note: Repesents elecEically opeBted v.hicles und€r th€ head rcrcwable eners/ devices as per clause (xiii) (o) ofNew Appendir loflrEont Tax Rules.

R



Kutt ,tn GriGD Priv.t Limiacd

(Formerly Kuttukaratr Pre Owled Cars Privste Limited)

NotB to thr fiuDcirl st.t mcn6 (cotraiDucd)

(All amounts in millions )

34 The paid up Equity Share Capital and accumulated losses of the Company as at 3lst March 2024 was Rs. 5.10 (amount in millions) and Rs. 8.12 (arnount ir!
millions) respectively. The accumula@d losses exceeds the net worth of tlre Cornpaly as at 3lsl March 2024. As per review of operations by the management, the
rnarket for electric vehicles is expected to grow based on several factors such as new Covt. policies fo. supporting use of elert c vehiclcs, intsoduction of new
matketing Policies for incrcas€ h sales by hidng new p€rsonal exclusively for catering to needs of corporate sales, digital marketitlg penonal, inEoduction of new
test &ive zones. The Company also focuses oo improvisation ofservices by s€tting up servicr studio pockets, service camps, hoDe servic€ polishing to build loyalty
with cusiomers. The group is enthusiastically embracing the glolr,th opportunity in the EV segment business in India. To accelemte the momentun a COO has b€en
appoi ed efiective May l st. KGPL is expected to take significa[t strides forward, a[ticipating a substantiat boost in market sha.e staning Septernber 2024, with lhe
introduction of the few new models fiom the OEM.During Ore year, the holding company, Popular Vehicles and Servic€s Lad has brought in additional firnds into
the tune oflts 3 5 Cr.Even though the net worth is negative, lhe company has been able to improve its sales volume and service in FY 2023-24 when compa.ed to
FY 2022-23. Fuflher, lhc Cost ofGoods sold has decreased during fie current year on account of improved suppo( from pfucipal OEM in the form of ince.rtiv€s
and discounts. The fman@ cost is exp€cted !o come down h fte coming yea$, sinc€ a c&nain portion of the firnding made by the holding compaiy is expccted to be
converted to Equity. The improvemeDt iD the inventory management system which occuned during the later pan of the year l,ill ensue better working capital
managemeru tlroughout the coming ye6[s so as to ensue savings in intercsl cost.

Based on lhe above opemtions plans, lhe mmagement believes that the Company will be able to continue its operations on a going concem basis and meer all its
liabilities as they fall due for payment based on the frianciat so-ategies and operating plarls which the management believes will enable the Company to generste
operatiry cash flows in the future especially in view ofnew dealership. The financial shtements have accordingly been preparcd on a going concem basis.

35 (a) No funds have b€en advanced or loalled or invested (eith€r ftom borrowed frrnds or share premium or any other sourc&s or kind of firnds) by the Company to or
in any olhet peEon(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries") with lhe understandin& whether recorded in w ting or otherwise, lhat the
tntermediary shall lend or invest itl other persons or entities identified by or on behalfofthe Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any gudantee, s€curity
or like on behalfofthe Ultimat€ Beneficiafies.

(b) The Compmy has mt received any frltlds fiom any persoo(s) or entity(ies) ("Funding Party") with the understanding, whether recorded in \rriting or otherwis€,
that the Company shall, whelher, directly or indircctly, lend or invesl in othe, persons or entities identified by or on behalf of fie Funding pany (..Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any glarant€e, security or lhe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaies.

J6 Previous Year figues are regouped wherever fou[d necessary

#2tkl
John K P.ul

Director
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